
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Commercial Services 
Cabinet Committee

Members of the Commercial Services Cabinet Committee of Gravesham Borough Council are 
summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the Council Chamber, Civic Suite on Wednesday, 26 
February 2020 at 7.30 pm when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be 
transacted.

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 4)

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private of those (if any) in Part B in public 

5. Corporate Performance Update - Quarter Three 2019-20 (Pages 5 - 12)

To present the Members of Commercial Services Committee with an 
update against the Performance Management Framework, as introduced 
within the council’s Corporate Plan, for Quarter Three 2019-20 (October 
to December 2019).

6. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter or urgency. 



7. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them

Part B

Items likely to be considered in Private

8. Property Dashboard (Pages 13 - 14)

Members

Cllr Lenny Rolles (Chair)
Cllr Sarah Gow (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: John Caller
Jordan Meade
Leslie Pearton
Anthony Pritchard
Tony Rana
Tony Rice
Gurbax Singh
Denise Tiran

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Commercial Services Cabinet Committee

Monday, 4 November 2019 7.30 pm

Present:

Cllr Lenny Rolles (Chair)

Councillors: Conrad Broadley
John Caller
Anthony Pritchard
Tony Rice
Gurbax Singh
Denise Tiran
Christina Rolles

Stuart Bobby Director (Corporate Services)
Sarah Parfitt Assistant Director (Corporate Services)
Elizabeth Thornton Service Manager (Property & Regulatory Services)
Lauren Wallis Committee Services Officer (Minutes)

10. Apologies 

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Sarah Gow, Cllr Leslie Pearton and Cllr Tony 
Rana.

Cllr Christina Rolles attended as the substitute for Cllr Sarah Gow.

11. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2019 were signed by the Chair.

12. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest were made.

13. Exclusion 

Resolved pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972  that the 
public be excluded during the following items of business because it was likely in 
view of the nature of the business to be transacted that, if member of the public were 
present during this item, there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Commercial Services Cabinet Committee 4.11.2019

2

14. Formation of a Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo) – Update 

The Committee was given an update on the progress being made in the forming of a Local 
Authority Trading Company (LATCo) for the Borough Council. Members were also presented 
with a draft business case template for consideration and comment.

A general discussion took place during which Members made several suggestions regarding 
potential additions and amendments to the business case template. Officers agreed to 
discuss a number of the points raised with both internal legal officers and the Council’s 
external legal advisors before submitting a revised template as part of the LATCo report to a 
meeting of Cabinet in December.

Resolved that:

(1) The progress being made on the formation of the Local Authority Trading 
Company be noted: and

(2) The comments made by the Commercial Services Cabinet Committee in 
relation to the draft business case template are presented to Cabinet and Full 
Council.

15. Commercial Property Portfolio Dashboard 

The Director (Corporate Services) advised that this performance monitoring information had 
first been considered by the Committee at its meeting in September. The document had 
been developed by the Council’s Finance and Property Services teams and covered a 
portfolio worth approximately £42m. The information had been analysed sector by sector 
and events that might affect the portfolio had also been highlighted. It was the intention to 
present this document to the Committee on a quarterly basis.

The Chair advised that he had been very impressed with this very useful document and 
thanked the officers involved.

Resolved that the Information Dashboard – Gravesham Borough Council’s 
Commercial Property Portfolio be noted.

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 8.20 pm

Page 4



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Commercial Services Committee

Date: 26 February 2020

Reporting officer: Stuart Bobby - Director (Corporate Services)

Subject: Corporate Performance Update: Quarter Three 2019-20 

Purpose and summary of report: 
To present the Members of Commercial Services Committee with an update against the 
Performance Management Framework, as introduced within the council’s Corporate Plan, for 
Quarter Three 2019-20 (October to December 2019).

Recommendations:
1. This report is for information purposes only.

1. Introduction

1.1 In October 2019 the council formally adopted its new Corporate Plan for 2019-23. 
The plan sets out the council’s ambition for the borough, complete with a suite of 
corporate objectives and supporting policy commitments that will shape the 
council’s activities over the four year period.  

1.2 In order to evaluate if the council is effectively achieving against its stated policy 
commitments, and is ultimately delivering consistently high quality services, the 
council need to have a sound performance management process in place. 
Developed by senior council officers and Cabinet portfolio holders, the council’s 
Corporate Plan presents a Performance Management Framework (PMF) that 
forms the basis of reporting corporate performance to council Members and 
residents. 

2. Performance management: process

2.1 The effective management of the council relies upon good quality and timely 
performance information on which to base informed executive decisions. 

2.2 Appendix Two to this report provides the Members of Commercial Services 
Committee with a statistical overview of the council’s performance against the 
Corporate Plan for Quarter Three 2019-20, covering the period October to 
December 2019. 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



2

2.3 Information on performance over the period is presented in tabular and graphical 
form for all indicators. Where any data is not presented, this will relate either to 
those indicators reported on an annual basis or, alternatively, where data has not 
been submitted in time for the presentation of the report. Any outturns where data 
has been unable to be reported will be presented within the next available 
reporting cycle.  

3. BACKGROUND PAPERS

 Gravesham Borough Council: Corporate Plan 2019-23. 

 Gravesham Borough Council: Performance Management Framework 
2019-23. 

Page 6



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1

     

Legal The council’s Corporate Plan is an integral part of the authority’s policy framework 
as defined by the Constitution. The new Plan will ensure the council has in place an 
effective framework to delivery its responsibilities and delivers better results for 
vulnerable local residents, with the assistance of relevant partner agencies. 

Finance and 
Value for 
Money 

There are no significant costs associated with the monitoring of the council’s 
Corporate Plan from which council activities should be based and which 
therefore should be accounted for as part of on-going financial planning 
processes.

Risk 
Assessment

Implementation of a performance management framework allows the council to 
evidence how successful it is in achieving against its stated objectives and provides 
residents accountability in how successfully it is administering its resources.   
Screening for Equality ImpactsEquality 

Impact 
Assessment Question

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
N/A

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
N/A

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate 
Plan

The council’s adopted Corporate Plan sets the strategic ambition and objectives for 
the authority over the 2019-23 period. This report provides Cabinet with a quarterly 
assessment of how the council is delivering against its objectives through its 
performance management framework.

Crime and 
Disorder

Community safety is an integral theme of the Corporate Plan and work by the 
council in this area, alongside its key partners, will go towards delivering corporate 
objective #1 People.

Digital and 
website 
implications

In terms of the council's performance management framework, digital 
implications are represented and assessed through the outturns relating to  
'PI 51: online self-help forms'.

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable 
adults

The council's work in safeguarding children and vulnerable adults helps contribute 
towards delivering corporate objectives #1 People and #2: Place.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Gravesham Borough Council - Corporate Plan 2019-23 00Delivering a Gravesham to be proud of

Delivering a Gravesham to be proud of

C O M M E R C I A L  S E R V I C E S
C O M M I T T E E

Performance    report 
Q  3  :  2  0  1  9  -  2  0

P
age 9



P I  46 Average yield generated by property investment activity

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

P I  45 Total rental income from property investments P I  47 Total amount secured through contractual social value

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

Q1

2019 - 20

Q2

2019 - 20

Q3

2019 - 20

Q4

2019 - 20

Q1

2020 - 21

Q2

2020 - 21

Q3

2020 - 21

Q4

2020 - 21

£10,000 £0 £32,686

O U T T U R N 

At Full Council in December 2019, the formation of a Local Authority trading Company (LATCo) was 

approved.  Since then, the company – Rosherville Limited – has been formally incorporated with 

Companies House.

In Q4 the Cabinet will be receiving reports to:

• Establish the Board membership for Rosherville Limited and approves the Articles of Association 

for the Company.

• Establish the Shareholder Group to act as an advisory group to the Leader in aiding the decision-

making process.  This will include membership of the Shareholder Group along with the Shareholder 
Agreement and terms of reference for the Shareholder Group.

• Approve the formation of two subsidiary companies, subject to a complete business case being 
presented.  These will be in relation to the vehicle workshop service and a development company to 

aid the Heritage Quarter development project.

In additon, through procurement of new contracts in 2019/20, we secured funding in 
the region of £42,000 to help support the council deliver specific community events. 
For example, Swale Heating has committed to funding the council fireworks event for 
the next 10 years. It is anticipated increased activity in this area will enable greater 
'social value' returns to support council initiatives.

O U T T U R N 

#3 PROGRESS
"an entrepreneurial authority; commercial in outlook and committed to continuous service 

improvement, underpinned by a skilled workforce and strong governance environment."

P O L I C Y   C O M M I T M E N T 

1. Develop an entrepreneurial culture: deliver on commercial opportunities to generate income and

provide a social impact.

O U T T U R N 

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q4
2019 - 20

£0

£15,000

£30,000

£45,000

Q1
2019 - 20

Q2
2019 - 20

Q3
2019 - 20

0%

5%

10%

15%

Q4
2019 - 20

P
age 10



Delivering a Gravesham to be proud of

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Corporate Performance Update - Quarter Three 2019-20
	2. Commercial Services - Q3 2019-20 - Appendix 2.pdf

	8 Property Dashboard



